
MINUTES OF THE CITY OF DRIGGS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AUGUST 4, 2009

Pursuant to adjournment of the regular City Council meeting held July 21, 2009, and the
call of the Mayor, the Driggs City Council met in regular session Tuesday August 4,
2009, at 7:00 p.m.  A roll call was taken and present were council members: George
Mosher, Dan Powers, Greer Jones and Colin Dye, Mayor Louis Christensen, Planning
and Zoning Administrator Doug Self, Public Works Director Jared Gunderson, Financial
Officer Amy Smith, and City Attorney Stephen Zollinger.  Mayor Christensen led the
Pledge of Allegiance.

MINUTES TO REVIEW
Council Members reviewed the minutes.  Council Members Mosher made a correction.

Council Member Mosher made a motion to approve the minutes of the July 21, 2009
City Council Meeting.  Council Member Jones seconded the motion.  The motion carried
unanimously.

CLAIMS REVIEW
Council members reviewed the claims.  

Council Member Mosher made a motion to approve the claims as presented dated July
22, 2009 through August 4, 2009.  Council Member Powers seconded the motion.  The
motion carried unanimously.  

PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
Bear Run Development Agreement
Doug presented information to the Council.  He stated the agreement was for a 45-lot
subdivision west of Shoshoni Plains Phase IV.  One condition upon approval was that the
developer improved 1000 North adjacent to their development to city standards and
improved 1000 North to Highway 33 for emergency access to standards of the Fire
Marshal.  The Fire Marshal responded to this, stating he did not need further
improvements along 1000 North and would take other access roads such as Ross Avenue
and Booshway.

Council Member Powers questioned if 1000 North should be improved for construction.
Doug responded stating that requirement could be placed in the construction management
plan which would “lock in whatever route” that was most appropriate, which generally
used Little Avenue and Highway 33.

In the Development Agreement, a development impact fee credit would be granted for
improving 1000 North as that road was in the capital improvement plan.  The City
Attorney had reviewed the language regarding this item.  The other issue was delaying
the requirement for bonding until any individual lot was sold or marketed with the ability
to transfer the entire development without having to bond.  



Council Member Powers questioned the impact fee credit.  Doug assured him the credit
was only for the roads and those requesting a building permit would still have to pay the
impact fees for parks and fire.

Council Member Powers made a motion to approve the Development Agreement for
the Bear Run Subdivision.  Council Member Mosher seconded the motion.  The motion
passed unanimously.  

High School Sign at old Middle School, 515 North Main Street
Doug stated that the question regarding the sign was whether the applicant could
maintain the government exemption and still have the SilverStar logo placed on the sign.
Stephen Zollinger, City Attorney, discussed with Doug prior to the meeting that if
SilverStar was a sponsor and it was secondary to the High School sign, the government
exemption could be put into place.  The size of the sign would not conform to the Sign
Ordinance if this were not acknowledged as a government sign.

Council Member Mosher suggested accepting this sign in exchange for the easement for
the North/South Pathway project at the Elementary School.

Council Member Mosher made a motion approve the government sign exemption
request from the Teton County School District as presented.  Council Member Dye
seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  

Cinema Plans-Bruce Simon
The Creekside Retail and Cinema was remanded back to Planning and Zoning with the
direction, “to allow one row of parking in front of the retail stores given the constraints of
the water line and suggest a compromise plan be worked out to bring the building as far
forward as possible and review the possibility to re-review on street parking and consider
relaxing the parking standards if the applicant can not meet the parking requirements.”  

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the concept sketch and wanted to make
one significant change to it, which was placing the building directly next to a sidewalk
that would connect to a pathway to meet Design Standards 6a which states, “at least some
portion of a building shall be placed within 20 feet of the required multi-use pathway or a
sidewalk that connects to the pathway.”  

Clarification on the City Council’s intent for the requested one row of parking was
needed.  Doug questioned if it was to let the site plan be exempt from the above
requirement.  He stated an exception to the standard that reads, “The building orientation
standard may be reduced or waived where the approval body finds that an intervening
driveway or parking space is for a hotel or hospital loading/unload area, automobile
fueling, or another automobile-related use for which there is no alternative location.”
Doug stated the pick-up and drop-off location for the theater could meet this requirement
and the requirement could be exempt.  The intent of the standards was to provide safe
pedestrian access.  Reducing the parking lot width and providing a crosswalk to the
pathway could complete this requirement.  



Doug recommended directing the Planning and Zoning Commission to use the above
exception for automobile-related uses to waive the 6a requirement.

Bruce Simon stated what had been discussed “would work.”  He continued by stating his
frustration for the process.  He felt the revised plan did not show a “flow of traffic” and
he believed the Fire Department would not approve the “dead-end parking lot.”  He
thought the Planning and Zoning Commission had direction to work with “plan one.”  He
requested the City Council remand the application to the Planning and Zoning
Commission but felt “the Commission can’t get there on this project.”  Bruce felt “they
are always trying to find out how it can’t work.”  He further stated, “I don’t know what’s
wrong with the Planning Commission, or is it me?”  He requested the City Council “take
a look at the Planning Commissioners and their attitudes toward developers,” to ensure
they City can grow, creating employees and amenities.  

Council Member Powers questioned how Figure 2 on Doug’s staff report was created.
Doug stated the Commission articulated it.  Traffic flow and parking was discussed for
Figure 2.  Council Member Powers further questioned that if the sidewalks proposed in
Figure 2 were placed on the site plan for Figure 1, if the requirement would be met.
Council Member Jones stated that the requirement needed the sidewalk to be within 20
feet and would be 24-feet in Figure 1.  However, he stated, this was “close enough” and
traffic flow might be better in Figure 1.   

Mr. Simon stated he did not need to have a parking variance and could work with the
number of parking spaces.  

Council Member Powers began a discussion of the waterline location.  He felt that since
the City accepted the line, it was the City’s responsibility, contrary to the thoughts form
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Council Member Mosher agreed.  

Council Member Powers questioned if Mr. Simon could follow the design standards for
landscaping and replacing trees.  Mr. Simon responded, stating he could, although he
hadn’t read these standards.  Doug read the standards for replacing trees.

Discussion of the waterline and the easement continued.  Mr. Simon stated he would give
an easement “if we can park on it.”  Jared Gunderson stated the width for a waterline
easement was 20-feet.  Mr. Simon stated that could be done with the placement of the
building.  

Council Member Mosher stated he did not want to send the sketch plan back to the
Planning and Zoning Commission, but wanted to approve the site plan with the
adjustments discussed.  Council Member Powers stated the plan would still have to go
back to Planning and Zoning for the design review.  Council Member Mosher stated he
wanted to “get over this road block.”  Council Member Powers stated he was comfortable
with the sketch plan as discussed, but the rest of the plan needed to meet the remaining
standards.  Council Member Mosher agreed.  Doug Self stated he felt a joint meeting



should be scheduled with the Planning and Zoning Commission.  A joint meeting was
scheduled for August 18, 2009.  

Council Member Powers made a motion that the Council interpret section ‘a’ as read
in the Planning and Zoning report to allow the site plan in Figure 1 with reference to the
pedestrian access that the building sited in Figure 1 has sufficient pedestrian access with
the addition of two crosswalks that connect to the Driggs North-South Pathway and this
exception allows the waiving of the requirement of 6b that no surface parking areas or
driveway lanes may be located between the street and buildings used to satisfy the
requirements in subsection 6a.  Council Member Mosher seconded the motion.  All were
in favor.  

FINANCIAL REPORT
Budget Review Fiscal Year 2010
Amy Smith presented information to the Council.  She stated the primary change made to
the general fund was the budgeted revenue for the property tax, placing the full amount
the City was entitled to.  Amy explained her reasoning for doing so, which included a
request for an increase in the Sheriff’s contract, park improvements which included flags
and landscaping, and support for the road department.  The former mentioned items
would be ‘buffer items depending on what the property tax revenue was,” stated Mayor
Christensen.  Amy further stated that all of the state projected revenues had been updated
from the Association of Idaho Cities.  Doug made a few changes to the Planning and
Zoning budget as well.  

The resort tax fund was altered, adding three expenses for projects such as the
North/South Pathway and equipment that is needed.

Council Member Powers questioned the wages and salaries, as they appeared to be lower
then in previous years.  Amy explained that it was due to some hours being allocated to
other departments and having a smaller staff instead of budgeting for seasonal and/or
part-time employees that might be needed.  

Council Member Dye questioned if a Planning and Zoning staff position should be cut.
Mayor Christensen stated that just because the City was not receiving a large number of
building permits “the Planning and Zoning staff and all of the staff members are still
doing the same amount of work as they were doing with Building Permits.”  Council
Member Dye felt the workload had decreased.  Amy Smith responded by stating that the
Planning and Zoning Assistant wages, as well as others, were being allocated between
the Planning and Zoning Department, the Water and Sewer, Urban Renewal, General
Fund, etc., which reflected that “everyone is doing work in the different departments.”

Council Member Dye questioned why the Airport Board had not been reimbursing the
City for the hours that City staff spent on airport issues, as well as for police coverage.
“They have plenty of money,” Council Member Dye said.  Amy stated the airport was
willing to reimburse the City for staff time.  Mr. Zollinger explained the past



reimbursement procedures between the City and the Airport Board as well as the present
suggestions from the City Auditors.  

Amy explained the Airport Budget.  She stated the Airport Board, with the revenues and
entitlement funds, generally had more revenues then expenses.  This excess generally
when into a fund for a future project.  Mr. Zollinger stated that only a percentage of
entitlement funds could be used for staff hours.  Council Member Dye questioned if a
directive needed to be made for the hours City staff puts into the Airports.   A discussion
of how feasible it would be to track hours for each department began.  

Council Member Dye also stated that the City owns a police car that was not being used
and the Teton County Sheriff did not want it unless it is donated to the office.  Council
Member Dye suggested selling the vehicle.  Council Member Jones questioned if the
Council wanted to increase the monetary value of the Sheriff’s contract.  Council
Member Dye stated he felt that “Tony will do a good job.”  Council Member Powers
stated there “wasn’t much discussion with him” and negotiation of the proposed amount
should be discussed.  Mr. Zollinger stated a contract that only paid for a portion of an
employee was not easy to accomdate.  Council Member Powers stated he would like to
have further discussion with Sheriff Liford.  

Amy continued to explain the budget.  She stated that there were a lot of equipment and
road repairs and stated the expense for fuel could go up with fuel prices rise.  Leases, rent
and cleaning services for the City buildings were discussed.  Adding the Huntsman
Springs homes as well as other changes in the expenditures and revenues changed sewer
fee projections.  Amy explained the water services for the future in relationship to the
budget.  She stated that if the City Council wanted “to make depreciation a goal, we have
to come up with some more revenue.” 

Water Rate Review
Amy Smith discussed the water rate scenarios she figured based on the rate options
presented by Jason Linford with Sunrise Engineering.  

The scenario was a base rate with $1 charge for every 1,000 gallons used.  The base rate
would be $23.10 for in-city users.  Based on rates from June 2009, Amy stated this
scenario would increase revenue by approximately $13,000 per month.  Amy explained
that the figure could decrease as people strive to conserve more water or increase during
the winter months to keep pipes from freezing.  

Council Member Powers felt that the new rate plan would help in decreasing the deficit.
He further stated that those properties that need the allowance of water during the winter
months should be identified instead of giving every user the 10,000-gallon allowance.  

Amy stated in order to install a MXU device on the meters that don’t have one, it would
be approximately $200.  She did not feel that the City should take the responsibility for
that cost, but make it an available option for those that want their meter read every
month. 



Council Member Mosher stated this scenario appeared to be one that would work.
Council Member Jones agreed stating, “It takes a lot to maintain the water and sewer.”
Mayor Christensen stated that if the Council was comfortable with this, it could move
forward.   

Council Member Mosher stated he would like to see a line item in the budget for the
Food Bank and the Teton Human Society.  He questioned what the Council felt was an
appropriate amount to contribute.  Amy stated that the budget for this fiscal year would
need to be re-opened and perhaps these contributions could come out of the general fund
for this year.  She further stated that for the 2010 fiscal year, there could be a line item
for these agencies with a contingency based on tax revenues.

Council Member Mosher commented in regards to the proposal from the Sheriff, stating
he felt “skeptical in doubling the amount of money, especially if he doesn’t want our
car.”  He stated the car should be offered to the Sheriff and “let them use it throughout
the county.”  Council Member Mosher would like to have Tony Liford come to one of
the future Council meetings.
  
PUBLIC WORKS REPORT
Sewer Back-Up
A phone call was received last week that the sewer was backing-up into the hangers at
the airport.  “Warbird’s was backed up and full of grease.”  Homes further down the line
were affected as well.  Jared Gunderson stated, “We had things working in the manner
they should.”  He further stated he “couldn’t say 100% this was caused by Warbird’s.”
The Mayor stated that Burger King, Subway, Buffalo Junction Townhomes and
Renaissance Assisted Living all come to the same line.  Jared stated enzymes had been
put in the line at Warbird’s.  Mayor Christensen stated the insurance adjusters were
working with the homeowners.  

Dylan will be working on spraying weeds around town.  Jared will be sweeping the
streets in the next couple of days.  The City of Victor would be making a contribution to
the road fund in exchange for sweeping the streets.  

MAYOR’S REPORT
August 14, 2009 Senator Crapo will be at City Hall from 1:30-2:00pm.  Mayor
Christensen will discuss FAA issues and obtaining GSA vehicles in rural areas.  

August 19, 2009 the ITD Board will meet at City Hall. 

Scott Rogers has requested a meeting with two Councilmen, Public Works Directors,
Financial officers, City Attorneys, and the Mayors from Victor and Driggs on August 20,
2009.  This is an educational meeting.  

Stephen Zollinger reported on the hearing regarding the Airport and the injunction filed
against the City.  He stated that after discussion, the Judge determined that the City did



not change anything for the property owners prior to or after the Corrective Action Plan
had been submitted to the FAA.

ADJOURNMENT
Council Member Jones made a motion to adjourn.  Council Member Mosher seconded
the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor and the meeting was adjourned at
9:16pm. 

ATTEST:

__________________________________ ______________________________
Sonya Adams, City Clerk Louis B. Christensen, Mayor


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7

